
Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 25, 2023 Page 1 
 

 
AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday April 25, 2023 

6:45pm Regular Meeting 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 

3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council April 11, 2023 
 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230270 to 20230296 
b) Council Remuneration Listing 

 
 

6. New Business 
 

a) Public Works Quarterly Report 
 

• General Public Works Update (Darren Jensen – Public Works 
Foreman) and Safety Update (Chris Loov - Parks Supervisor/Safety 
Officer) 
 

b) Ball Diamonds Maintenance Standards (Asset Management) 
 

c) Update 52nd Street Corridor Tree Planting (Chris Loov) 
 

 
7. Correspondence 

 
a) Lacombe Foundation – Audited Financial Statements 
b) Lacombe Foundation – Advocacy Messages 

 
 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 25, 2023 Page 2 
 

8. Other Business 
  

 None 
 
 

9. Council Reports 
 

a) Mayor Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 
c) Councillor Eastman 
d) Councillor Valiquette  
e) Councillor Hansen 

 
  
10. Adjournment       

 
 
 

Municipal Planning Commission scheduled after Regular Meeting of Council – 
(approximately 8:00pm) – For more information see separate Agenda Package on the 

Town Website 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes April 11, 2023 
 

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 April 11, 2023 

 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, April 11, 2023, at 6:45 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office 
 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 

   Councillor Hansen 
   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Eastman 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
   
Call to Order Mayor Rathjen called the regular meeting to order at 6:45pm 

 

Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 104/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the agenda of 
the April 11, 2023, regular meeting of mayor and council be amended to 
remove council reports, which will be presented at the April 25, 2023, regular 
meeting of council.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 105/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the amended 
agenda of the April 11, 2023, regular meeting of mayor and council be 
accepted.” 

        Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes April 11, 2023 
 

Previous Minutes   
Motion 106/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
minutes of the March 28, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 
 

 
Financial  

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230214 to 20230269 
 

Motion 107/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT Cheques 
No. 20230214 to 20230269 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

New Business  
 

a) Bentley Minor Soccer Letter & Delegation 
 

Bentley Minor Soccer attended the meeting with several delegates from their 
board and membership. Introduced to Mayor and Council and presenting on 
behalf of Bentley Minor Soccer was Michelle Lunty (Vice President) & 
Juanita Bender. The request from Minor Soccer relates to the need for 
additional field space based on rising participation rates for minor soccer. 

 

Motion 108/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT CAO Marc 
Fortais be directed to look for suitable space on Town Owned Land to 
potentially accommodate a playing field and to bring back to council a report 
within a month regarding the findings.” 

        Carried 

 

b) Subdivision Names – New Beginnings Subdivision 

Motion 109/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT administration 
be directed to conduct a survey for a maximum time of two weeks, with the 
residents in the Town of Bentley regarding selecting a name form the 
following list of names for re-naming the New Beginnings Subdivision: 

- Sunset Heights 
- Valleyview Estates 
- Diamond View 
- Blindman Valleyview 
- Moonlight Estates 
- Harvest Heights 

Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes April 11, 2023 
 

c) Bylaw 240/2023 A Bylaw to Repeal Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to appoint 
Elizabeth Smart as CAO 

Motion 110/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Bylaw No. 
240/2023 being a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to 
repeal Bylaw 88-04 a bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the 
Town be read a first time this 11th Day of April 2023.” 

Carried 

 

Motion 111/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT Bylaw No. 
240/2023 be read a second time this 11th Day of April 2023.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 112/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT Bylaw No. 
240/2023 be presented and considered for third and final reading this 11th 
Day of April 2023.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 113/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Bylaw No. 
240/2023 be read a third and final time this 11th Day of April 2023.” 

           Carried 

 

Correspondence 

a) Council Highlights Lacombe County March 23, 2023 
 

b) Parkland Regional Library Annual Report 
 

c)  Parkland Community Planning Update 
 

Motion 114/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT 
Correspondence item a) be accepted as information. “ 

        Carried 

 

Other Business 

a) Bylaw 127-2008 Procedural Bylaw (discussion surrounding 
delegations and decisions of council) 

- Mayor and Council discussed when delegations appear before council if 
it was appropriate to render decisions on the day of the delegation or if 
those decisions should be deferred to the next meeting. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes April 11, 2023 
 

- CAO Marc Fortais advised that there was nothing in the procedural 
bylaw that specified decisions had to be deferred to the next meeting. 

- It was further clarified that any member of council can make motions in 
accordance with Roberts Rules of Order and if a councillor wished to 
make a motion considering a decision by council, any other member of 
council could subsequently make another motion, requesting that a vote 
on that motion be deferred to the next meeting to allow time for that 
member of council to consider his or her decision. Voting would take 
place on the motion requesting to defer the motion first, then on the first 
motion if the motion to defer the request was defeated. If it was not 
defeated, then the vote for the first motion would be deferred till the next 
meeting.  

No motions were made regarding other business. 

 

Adjournment  
 Motion 115/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale “THAT the regular 

meeting of mayor and council be adjourned at 8:11pm.” 
 
         Carried 
 
        
 
         
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 



10:38:49AM

TOWN OF BENTLEY

2023-Apr-19Cheque Listing For Council

Page 1 of 1

Cheque #

Cheque

Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description

Invoice 

Amount

Cheque 

Amount

 20230270 2023-04-11 BLACK PRESS GROUP LTD. PAYMENT  612.54

34401597 RIMBEY REVIEW PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ADVERTISING 612.54 

 20230271 2023-04-11 G.L.D.C. GAS CO-OP LTD. PAYMENT  688.67

651859 BENTLEY FIRE HALL NATURAL GAS BILL  688.67 

 20230272 2023-04-11 HHID PAYMENT  787.50

367514 DEM APRIL PAYMENT  787.50 

 20230273 2023-04-11 PARKLAND COMMUNITY PLANNING SERVICES PAYMENT  504.00

31032023 REGIONAL SDAB - ANNUAL SERVICE FEE 2023 504.00 

 20230274 2023-04-11 POPOW AND SONS BODY SHOP PAYMENT  472.50

23-23322 SWEEPER HAULING TO AUCTION  472.50 

 20230275 2023-04-11 SYLVAN LAKE SUMMER HOCKEY CAMP LTD PAYMENT  4,200.00

30042023 ARENA CONTRACT APRIL PAYMENT  4,200.00 

 20230276 2023-04-11 TELUS COMMUNICATIONS INC. PAYMENT  868.33

04042023 ARENA WIFI  68.25 

04042023. INTERAC LINE  37.55 

APR042023 TELUS BILL FOR APRIL 2023  762.53 

 20230277 2023-04-11 BENTLEY I.D.A. PHARMACY PAYMENT  14.68

29032023 PW SHOP SUPPLIES  14.68 

 20230278 2023-04-11 CHAPMAN RIEBEEK LLP PAYMENT  4,973.06

2304025 LEGAL SERVICES MARCH 2023  4,973.06 

 20230279 2023-04-11 LACOMBE COUNTY PAYMENT  1,508.47

IVC00043406 MARCH 2023 FIRE PAYROLL - TRAINING 214 HOURS 1,508.47 

 20230280 2023-04-11 SERVUS CREDIT UNION PAYMENT  2,182.74

03312023 SERVUS MASTERCARD BILL FOR MARCH 2023 2,182.74 

 20230281 2023-04-11 WOLF CREEK PUBLIC SCHOOL PAYMENT  239.26

11042023 SCHOOL TOWN CLEANUP SUPPLIES  239.26 

 20230282 2023-04-11 FCSSAA PAYMENT  205.00

24907183 DIRECTORS NETWORK CONFERENCE (BARB) 205.00 

 20230283 2023-04-15 RATHJEN, ARTHUR M

 20230284 2023-04-15 VALIQUETTE, BRENDA  C

 20230285 2023-04-15 HANSEN, PAMELA

 20230286 2023-04-15 GRIMSDALE, DALE A

 20230287 2023-04-15 EASTMAN, LENORE M

 20230288 2023-04-15 CARSON, BARBARA J

 20230289 2023-04-15 JENSEN, DARREN J

 20230290 2023-04-15 MEREDITH, SANDRA L

 20230291 2023-04-15 GIBSON, COLE C

 20230292 2023-04-15 DENNEHY, NATHAN

 20230293 2023-04-15 GREAVES, LORYANNE

 20230294 2023-04-15 FORTAIS, MARC C

 20230295 2023-04-15 KIKSTRA, ROBERT B

 20230296 2023-04-15 LOOV, CHRISTOPHER D

*** End of Report ***

Total  38,827.35





Council / Public Works

Meeting

April 25th , 2023



Water
• September 2022 

Water Summary
THM’s analysing was
done in this month 

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.
No failed Bacteria 
results
Trihalomethanes (THMs) are 
the result of a reaction 
between the chlorine used 
for disinfecting tap water 
and natural organic matter 
in the water. At elevated 
levels, THMs have been 
associated with negative 
health effects such as cancer 
and adverse reproductive 
outcomes





• October 2022 
Water Summary
There was no 
analyzing done in 
this month 

There were no 
operational 
problems, incidents, 
or concerns.
No failed Bacteria 
results



• November 2022 Water 
Summary
2022 Annual Water 
Analysis was done in this 
month

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.
No failed Bacteria results



• December 2022 Water 
Summary
THM’s analyzing was 
done in this month 

Bentley Elevator Fire, 
Very High Water and CL2 
Usage





• January 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
done in this month

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.
No failed Bacteria results



• February 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
done in this month

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.
No failed Bacteria results



• March 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
was done in this month 

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.
No failed Bacteria results



Fire Hydrant Replacement
• 3 hydrants will need to be replaced this spring 

Hydrants Being Replaced
1. Hydrant 1 (48th Ave & 50th Street)
2. Hydrant 10 (49th Ave & 49th Steet)
3. Hydrant 11 (49th Ave & Railway Ave) 





Water Treatment Plant Reservoirs
• Aquatech Diving & Marine Services (Contracted)
• Inspect and clean the Reservoirs & Clear Well
• Grout cracks, Reservoir 1 
• Remove Butterfly valve from Clear Well



Actuator Vault
• Connection issues to the Actuator 
• 2012 addition of Water Well 3
• Conduit housing the wiring to the Valve Actuator 

compromised 

Hydrant Testing & Flushing
• Spring hydrant flushing 

Wastewater

Wastewater Grab Samples 
• 3 Samples were sent to KaizenLab (October 2022)
• AE&P Maximum Allowable Concentrations were below allowable limits 
• Release began October 31st to November 21st, 2022

High Pressure Flushing
• Sanitary Sewer Lines 



Roads, 
Streets & 
Sidewalks
2023 Concrete 
Replacement 
Program

• Olds Concrete 
(Contractor)

• 46 Street (50 Ave 
– 48 Ave, Eastside) 

• 49 Ave (46 St – 45 
St, Northside)

• Designated 
Orange 1st

• Designated 
Green 2nd

• Designated 
Blue 3rd

• 46 St (50 Ave – 52 
Ave, Westside) 
Proposed

Sidewalk Repairs
• Office & Bike 

Shop Panels



Street Sweeping, Crack Filling & Line Painting
• Alberta Parking Lot Service (Contractor)
• 50 Avenue Divided Lines (Lower Main)

Dust Control
• Calcium Gravel Roads (Industrial, 50 Street N/S)
• Railway Ave 

Zero-Turn Mower
• PTO Clutch assembly 
• Quoted 5k to rebuild (Key-Ag)
• In the process of being rebuilt (In House)

• 1k for parts 
(*Note* Delay in receiving parts, extended rebuild time)

Allan Olson Auction
• Mobile Sweeper 
• Dakota ¼ Ton 

Recycle Trailer 
• Weld & Repaint (Flower Orders, Equipment, Material) 

Equipment



Miscellaneous

New Beginnings 
• Spray noxious weeds
• Harrow to uproot new growth

Town Hall Park
• Reconnect power to fountain & digital sign
• Landscape & install sod  
• Remove digital sign
• Spade in 12’ spruce tree



- The Parks & Rec Supervisor has acquired a pesticide applicator licence with a Landscape 
major through Lakeland College. Continuing education will be required to maintain 
enough credits to be recertified every 5 years.

- Standard operating procedures for mowers and weed whackers have been developed.

- All staff received First Aid and AED training in January.

- Public Works staff completed Fall Protection training in April.

- Public Works staff are working to complete ground disturbance and confined space 
training this Spring.

- Forms have been developed for pre-trip vehicle inspections and inspection books have 
placed in all municipal equipment.

- Forms have been developed for incident and accident reporting.

Safety Program



  2023 

Parks & Recreation 

Town of Bentley 

4/25/2023 

Ball Diamond Maintenance Plan 



 1 

  

 Table of Contents 

 
1. Introduction………………………………………………………………2 

 

2. Asset Register & replacement dates …………………..…….2 

 

3. Level of service maintenance chart…………………..……….4 

 

4. Risks & Inspections……………………………………….…………...6 

 

 Appendix A - Ball Diamond Inspection Form……………..……7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2 

1. Introduction 

The Town of Bentley takes great pride in providing its citizens with safe and well-maintained 

outdoor recreational facilities. As such, the town recognizes the importance of maintaining its 

ball diamonds to ensure their longevity and usability. This document has been developed to 

establish guidelines and procedures for the regular maintenance of the town's ball diamonds 

and to provide guidance for the town’s capital budgets. The document outlines the 

responsibilities of both the town and the users of the ball diamonds to promote safe and 

enjoyable play. By adhering to this policy, the town of Bentley aims to provide a high-quality 

outdoor experience for its citizens and visitors alike. 

Standards outlined in this plan have been developed with reference to policy’s from larger 

Canadian municipalities and with consultation of Bentley Minor Baseball. The plan aims to 

ensure that Bentley has ball diamond facilities that meet or exceed the standards of similarly 

sized municipalities in the province.  

 

2. Asset Register & Replacement Dates 

All replacement costs are rough estimates based off previous work done and industry 

averages to assist in budgeting. Many unpredictable factors can impact prices such as changes in 

cost of materials, cost of labour and inflation. 

 

Ball Diamond #1 

Asset 
Type 

Asset Description Asset Quantity Typical 
Life 

Year 
Purchased 

Current 
Replacement 
Value 

Chain-link 
fence 

All chain-link 
fencing surrounding 
the ball diamonds 
excluding chain-link 
on the backstop. 

300 linear meters 
of 4’ fence or 
370m2 

40 
years 

2017 $28,500 

Back stop 
fencing 

Chain-link fencing 
and posts for 
backstops. 

85m2 30 
years 

2017 $6,500 



 3 

Bleachers Aluminum Stands 
for spectator 
seating. 

2 Sets 
Dimensions: 
7’ Deep 
20’ Wide 
3’ Tall 

40 
years 

2016 $5,000 each 
 

Field 
Space 

Area for play within 
fencing enclosure. 

5,880m2 N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

Ball Diamond #2 

Asset Type Asset Description Asset Quantity Typical 
Life 

Year 
Purchased 

Current 
Replacement 
Value 

Chain-link 
fence 

All chain-link 
fencing surrounding 
the ball diamonds 
excluding chain-link 
on the backstop. 

340 linear meters 
of 4’ fence or 
415m2 

40 
years 

2000 $32,000 

Back stop 
fencing 

Chain-link fencing 
and posts for 
backstops. 

85m2 30 
years 

2000 $6,500 

Dugouts Wood constructed 
shelters with tin 
roof and a wooden 
player’s bench with 
steel legs. 

2 Dugouts 
Dimensions: 
7’ Deep 
19’ Wide 
8’ Tall 
16’ Long Bench 

30 
years 

2000 $8,000 each 

Bleachers Steel frame with a 
treated lumber 
seating surface. 

Set #1 Dimensions: 
9’ Deep 
12’ Wide 
4’ Tall 
Set #2 Dimensions: 
12’ Deep 
16’ Wide 
8’ Tall 

40 
years 

Unknown $10,000 each 
(Treated 
lumber to be 
replaced as 
needed) 

Field 
Space 

Area for play within 
fencing enclosure. 

7,650m2 N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

 



 4 

Ball Diamond #3 

Asset Type Asset Description Asset Quantity Typical 
Life 

Year 
Purchased 

Current 
Replacement 
Value 

Chain-link 
fence 

All chain-link 
fencing surrounding 
the ball diamonds 
excluding chain-link 
on the backstop. 

300 linear meters 
of 4’ fence or 
370m2 

40 
years 

2000 $32,000 

Back stop 
fencing 

Chain-link fencing 
and posts for 
backstops. 

85m2 30 
years 

2000 $6,500 

Dugouts Wood constructed 
shelters with tin 
roof and a wooden 
player’s bench with 
steel legs. 

2 Dugouts 
Dimensions: 
7’ Deep 
19’ Wide 
8’ Tall 
16’ Long Bench 

30 
years 

2000 $8,000 each 

Bleachers Steel frame with a 
treated lumber 
seating surface. 

Set #1 Dimensions: 
12’ Deep 
24’ Wide 
8’ Tall 
Set #2 Dimensions: 
12’ Deep 
16’ Wide 
8’ Tall 

40 
years 

Unknown $10,000 each 
(Treated 
lumber to be 
replaced as 
needed) 

Field 
Space 

Area for play within 
fencing enclosure. 

7,650m2 N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

 

3. Level of Service Maintenance Chart 

Maintenance standards outlined below have been developed based on common practices in 

Canadian municipalities. Consultation with Bentley Minor Baseball has also taken place to 

ensure a standard that allows for maximum usability and a clear understanding of stakeholder 

roles and responsibilities.  

 

 



 5 

Maintenance 
Activity 

Description Class A 
Diamonds #2 & 
#3 

Class B 
Diamond #1 

Quality 
Standard 

Grooming  
Dragging 

Drag harrows over 
shale section of 
diamonds to loosen 
material. After 
harrowing use brush to 
smooth out loosened 
shale. 

Every second 
week from 
May to end of 
minor ball 
season. Then 
monthly until 
September 

Monthly 
May to August 

Vary pattern 
each time and 
groomed to a 
depth of 2”-3” 

Grass Cutting Cutting grass in turf 
areas with the use of 
ride on mowing 
equipment. 

Twice a week 
May to end of 
Minor Ball 
season (weather 
permitting) 
Weekly until 
September 

Weekly from 
May to end of 
August 

Maintained at 
a minimum 
height of 2.5” 
and a 
maximum of 
4” 

Fertilizing  Application of slow-
release fertilizer to 
established turf areas. 

Yearly in April or 
May 

As needed Applied at 
proper rates to 
avoid grass 
burn.  

Weed 
Spraying 
(Shale) 

Spot spraying 
application of 
glyphosate to weeds on 
shale and in dugouts. 
Broad coverage 
spraying on shale late 
April and in September. 

Broad spray 
April and 
September. Spot 
spray every 
other week 
during Minor 
Ball season and 
as needed until 
September 

Broad spray 
April and 
September. Spot 
spray every 
other week 
during Minor 
Ball season and 
as needed until 
September 

Minimize 
weeds in 
shale. 
Coordinate 
spray times 
with ball 
diamond 
schedule to 
minimize user 
exposure  

Weed 
Spraying 
(Outfield) 

Broad spray of any 
combination of 2,4-D, 
Mecoprop-p and 
Dicamba broadleaf 
spray to control 
dandelions and other 
unwanted broadleaf 
weeds. 

Yearly each Fall Yearly each Fall Minimize 
weeds in 
established 
turf areas. 

Aerating  Use of aerating 
equipment to punch 
holes/slice into soil to 
relieve soil compaction. 

September 
every second 
year. 

September 
every second 
year. 

Aerate all 
established 
turf areas in 
ball field. 



 6 

Overseeding Light broadcasting of 
grass seed after 
aerating to promote 
thick and healthy turf. 

September 
every second 
year. 

September 
every second 
year. 

Overseed all 
locations 
where grass 
density is low. 

Litter Pick-up Clean litter from playing 
field. 

Visible litter to 
be picked up 
each time staff 
do work in the 
area. Mowing, 
spraying ect. 

Visible litter to 
be picked up 
each time staff 
do work in the 
area. Mowing, 
spraying ect. 

Field free of 
litter when 
cleaned. 

General 
Inspections 

Inspection of dugouts, 
fencing, bleachers, and 
general ball diamond 
conditions. Make 
repairs as needed. 

Monthly from 
April to October. 

Monthly from 
April to October. 

Facilities 
should be in 
safe and 
functional 
operating 
condition. 

Shale top-up Purchase, placement, 
and spreading of shale 
on the infield. 

Shale depth and 
condition to be 
checked yearly. 
Shale should be 
3-4” deep with 
minimal soil 
mixed in. 

Shale depth and 
condition to be 
checked yearly. 
Shale should be 
1-2” deep with 
minimal soil 
mixed in. 

Shale to be 
proper depth 
and have low 
amounts of 
soil mixed in. 

Bases and 
lines 

Installation of base 
pegs, bases, and 
painting of outfield 
lines. 

User 
responsible. 

User 
responsible. 

Users to 
maintain as 
needed. 

 

 

4. Risks & Inspections 

       Formal documented inspections will take place monthly as outlined in maintenance 

standards above and informal inspections are to take place whenever maintenance is being 

undertaken in the area. Regular inspection of ball diamonds is essential for maintaining player 

safety and reducing the risk of injury. Hazards such as uneven playing surfaces, improperly 

maintained equipment, and debris on the field can all pose a risk to players and spectators. 

Regular inspections can help identify and address these hazards before they lead to injuries. By 

taking proactive steps to identify and mitigate risks, the Town of Bentley can help ensure a safe 

and enjoyable experience for all users. 



 7 

Appendix A – Ball Diamond Inspection Form 

 Ball Diamond #1 

 
Item 

 
Inspection action 

Sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

Su
b

st
an

d
ar

d
 

N
/A

 

 
Comments 

Stands Check bench condition for 
splinters, excessive wear, or loose 
bolts 

    

Dugouts 
(Players Bench) 

Check building. Check benches 
for splinters or loose bolts 

    

Backstop  Attached properly at the base 
and check chain link for any 
damage  

    

Fencing  Check for any significant damage 
to the outer chain link fence 

    

Shale Check for uneven tripping 
hazards, garbage, or any other 
potential safety concerns 

    

Outfield Check for garbage, sticks and that 
it is in regular condition 

    

 

 Ball Diamond #2 

 
Item 

 
Inspection action 

Sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

Su
b

st
an

d
ar

d
 

N
/A

 

 
Comments 

Stands Check bench condition for 
splinters, excessive wear, or loose 
bolts 

    

Dugouts 
(Players Bench) 

Check building. Check benches 
for splinters or loose bolts 

    

Backstop  Attached properly at the base 
and check chain link for any 
damage 

    

Fencing  Check for any significant damage 
to the outer chain link fence 

    

Shale Check for uneven tripping 
hazards, garbage, or any other 
potential safety concerns 

    

Outfield Check for garbage, sticks and that 
it is in regular condition 

    

 



 8 

 Ball Diamond #3 

 
Item 

 
Inspection action 

Sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

Su
b

st
an

d
ar

d
 

N
/A

 

 
Comments 

Stands Check bench condition for 
splinters, excessive wear, or loose 
bolts 

    

Dugouts 
(Players Bench) 

Check building. Check benches 
for splinters or loose bolts 

    

Backstop  Attached properly at the base 
and check chain link for any 
damage 

    

Fencing  Check for any significant damage 
to the outer chain link fence 

    

Shale Check for uneven tripping 
hazards, garbage, or any other 
potential safety concerns 

    

Outfield Check for garbage, sticks and that 
it is in regular condition 

    

 

 



April 25, 2023, Council Agenda             New Business:     Update regarding tree planting 52nd Street Corridor 
 

 

 
 
Agenda Date:  April 25, 2023 
      
Agenda Item: New Business: Update regarding - Tree Planting 52nd Street Corridor 

Improvement 
 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
On March 14, 2023, Administration presented a plan to plant 30 Swedish Aspen (Attachment #1) 
along the NexSource fence line on the east side of the 52nd street corridor. 
 
The planting plan would be funded via a grant application to Fortis Alberta and via potential donations 
from local businesses. It has been confirmed that Nutrien Ag Solutions will provide a donation of 
$1,500, and we continue to wait for word if we are successful with the Fortis Alberta Tree grant.  
 
Upon further consultation with tree suppliers and a detailed site review with an arborist, it has been 
determined that due to substantial amounts of road salt and poor soil conditions in the ditch, a 
different variety of tree will be better suited to the area. Therefore, Public Works is recommending that 
Purple Spire Columnar Crab Apple be planted as a substitute for the previously proposed Swedish 
aspen. The revised species and planting plan is shown on (Attachment #2) and normally grows about 
five feet wide and twelve feet tall and produces purple flowers in the spring. The trees to be supplied 
will be approximately eight feet tall when we purchase them.  
 
Administration is recommending that we only plant 10 trees in 2023 and wait until the summer of 2024 
to assess tree health prior to planting additional trees. If the trees continue to be in good condition and 
showing sustainable growth an additional twenty trees could be added to fill the gaps in 2024. If the 
trees show signs of distress, they can still be dug out and replanted in another location. Our parks 
supervisor has also recommended that to give these trees the highest chance of survival holes will be 
dug out twice the width and depth of the root balls and filled with topsoil. Trees will be watered weekly 
and fertilized regularly to promote root establishment. 
 
The anticipated cost for this project will now be $7,100. This includes supply, delivery and planting of 
all trees, topsoil, and fertilizer as well as all equipment required for the job. 
 
At the March 14, 2023, regular meeting of Mayor and Council approval has been given to spend up to 
a maximum of $4,500 for the planting. With the $1,500 donation from Nutrien and if we are successful 
with the Fortis Tree grant of $2,500, we will have sufficient funds to conduct this year’s planting.  
 
Administration is requesting that Mayor and Council continue to provide their support, with the 
amended planting plan, which replaces the Swedish Aspen with Purple Spire Columnar Crab Apple. 
 
 



April 25, 2023, Council Agenda             New Business:     Update regarding tree planting 52nd Street Corridor 
 

RATIONALE FOR REQUEST 
 

• Corridor beautification will result in a more attractive entrance to the community, this creates 
greater appeal for tourists to turn and support the local business community. 
 

• The Town appreciates businesses such as Nutrien Ag Solutions and NexSource Power, 
however the entrance to the community is very industrialized and continued beautification, 
helps to create a more welcoming environment. 
 

• Purple Spire Columnar Crab Apple will offer more resilience and tolerance to salt than the 
previously proposed Swedish Aspen, based on our review of the site with an arborist. 

 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Grants and Donations   $4,000 (target) (revised from $4,500) 
Town of Bentley Commitment $4,500 (maximum previously approved Mar 14, 2023) 
 
Total Maximum Project Cost  $8,500 (anticipated cost is $7,100 based on revisions) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
THAT Mayor and Council authorize administration to change the type and number of trees to be 
planted on the 52nd street corridor from 30 Swedish Aspen to 10 Purple Spire Columnar Crab Apple; 
AND 
 
THAT a maximum of $4,500 still be approved to be funded first from any operational surpluses at year 
end; AND 
 
THAT if there are no operational surpluses, that the amount be drawn from the Tree Donations 
Reserve Fund 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Map of Tree Planting along 52nd Street – Original Plan 
2) Map of Tree Planting along 52nd Street – Revised Plan 

 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



                                   52nd Street Swedish Aspen Planting 
 
The Town of Bentley is planning to plant 30 Swedish Aspen along the NexSource fence line on the east 

side of 52nd Street. We believe this will enhance the natural appearance of our community in a location 

that receives high traffic volume. The total expected cost for this project will be roughly $8,000. Any 

sponsors willing to contribute $2,000 or more to this project will be given the opportunity to erect 

signage in the area acknowledging their contribution. The town will also recognize sponsors on the town 

webpage and on the town’s social media pages.  

 



                                   52nd Street Swedish Aspen Planting 
 
 

 

  

Area for future 

planting 

project 



















































EDMONTON | LLOYDMINSTER | WHITECOURT | EVANSBURG

12840 ST. ALBERT TRAIL NW EDMONTON, AB T5L 4H6 | T: 780.489.9606 F: 780.484.9689 | METRIXGROUP.CA

March 27, 2023

Lacombe Foundation

c/o The Bethany Group

4612 - 53 Street

Camrose, Alberta

T4V 1Y6

Attention:  Board of Directors

Dear Board Members:

RE:  2022 AUDIT

The purpose of this communication is to summarize certain matters arising from the audit that we 

believe would be of interest to the Board.  This communication should be read in conjunction with the 

financial statements and our report thereon, and it is intended solely for the use of the Board and should 

not be distributed to external parties without our prior consent.  Metrix Group LLP accepts no 

responsibility to a third party who uses this communication.

SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS FROM THE AUDIT

The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  Our audit procedures were performed in order to form an opinion on the 
financial statements and although they might bring possible fraudulent or illegal activities to our 
attention, our audit procedures were not designed to detect fraudulent or illegal activities.

The audit findings contained in this letter did not have a material effect on the Foundation’s financial 
statements, and as such, our audit report is without reservation.

Internal Controls

Our audit procedures did not reveal any significant deficiencies in internal control.

Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for determining the significant accounting policies.  The choice of different 

accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position and results of the 

Foundation.  The application of those policies often involves significant estimates and judgments by 

management.

We are of the opinion that the significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments made by 

management, and financial disclosures do not materially misstate the financial statements taken as a 

whole.  



2

Uncorrected Misstatements 

There were no uncorrected misstatements aggregated by our Firm, for the year ended December 31, 

2022.

After considering both quantitative and qualitative factors with respect to the uncorrected misstatements 

above, we agree with management that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties during our audit that should be brought to the attention of the 

Board.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

We believe it is important to communicate, at least annually, with you regarding all relationships 

between the Foundation and our Firm that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and 

related interpretations prescribed by CPA Alberta and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert 

significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired 

partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We are not aware of any relationships between the Foundation and ourselves that, in our professional 

judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence that have occurred from January 1, 

2022 to March 27, 2023.

We wish to thank the management and staff for their assistance during the audit.  We appreciate the 
opportunity to work with the Foundation.   

Yours very truly,

METRIX GROUP LLP

Curtis Friesen CPA, CA
Partner



  Caring Communities    

Lacombe Foundation – Advocacy 2023 

• Operates Lacombe Seniors Lodge (97 lodge rooms), Eckville Manor House (35 lodge 
rooms, 15 DSL 3 rooms).  

• Owns 48 Affordable housing units for families in Blackfalds and Lacombe.  
• Employs 69 people with competitive wages and benefits.  

 

Key issues: 

• The need to replace the aging Lacombe Lodge is critical. The current lodge is no longer 
meeting the needs of residents. A full feasibility study was completed in 2019. The 
current lodge has over 3.3 million dollars of deferred maintenance needs including the 
need to replace HVAC systems, boilers, windows and building envelopment 
replacement. Living spaces are small, corridors narrow and bathrooms are small and still 
have tubs.  
 

• A new building in Lacombe is needed to meet growing demand in the service area and 
allow for opportunities to address different care needs such the needs of couples and 
opportunities to “age in place”.    
   

• The Foundation has committed to hiring a project manager in 2023 to advance the 
project.  
 

• There is a gap in current grants offerings and the levels of funding in those grants are 
inadequate to cover the costs fairly. This gap in grants would see an unsustainable level 
of local requisition. 
 

• Lacombe Foundation seeks equitable funding similar to the funding provided to 
Parkland Foundation for their Autumn Grove project.  
 

• Lacombe Foundation  is still awaiting a response to a July 2022 application to provide 
adult day support programing at the Lacombe Lodge and is waiting for the opportunity 
to apply to provide home care services for congregate living sites.  
 

• Lacombe Foundation is supportive of the planned 2023 Lodge Program Review and is 
eager to participate in this important conversation to ensure that the seniors lodges in 
our community continue to serve all seniors who need safe, reliable and affordable 
accommodations and services.  

  
 



   
 

March, 2023  

Thank you for your request for an update on the Lacombe Lodge redevelopment proposal.  

The Feasibility Study  (Part 1 and Part 2) is available on the Lacombe Foundation website at 
https://www.lacombefoundation.ca/lodge-replacement-project  

The project request was originally submitted to the Ministry of Seniors and Housing (Housing and 
Lodges are now with the Ministry of Seniors, Community and Social Services)  through the annual 
business planning process in June 2019. The request was confirmed and updated  in the 2021 Business 
Plan submission to the Ministry.  

1. A detailed cost estimate was obtained In 2019. With large inflationary pressures in the 
construction industry,  a range between 7.5% to 30% cost increases is provided below.  
The original cost estimate is located in the Feasibility Study – Part 2, Table 9.1.  
  

 Original 2019 
Costing  
Altus 

2021  
Estimate 7.5% 
increase over 2019 

2023   
Estimate 30% increase 
over 2019 

Phase 1 
54-unit apartment 

11,964,000 12,893,550 15,553,200 

Phase 2 
Demolition 

535,000 575,175 695,500 

Phase 3 
87 lodge spaces 

21,285,000 23,461,875 27,670,500 

Phase 4 
Demolition 

815,000 876,125 1,138,962 

Phase 5 
47 new units lodge 
and/or supportive 
living 

10,604,000 11,399,300 13,85,200 

Total $ 45,233,000 $ 49,205,975 $ 58,802,900 
 
 

2. Lacombe Foundation currently has $2,272,966 in Restricted Reserves for the redevelopment 
project. Additional funds are added to the reserve when possible.  
 

3. Capital Maintenance: As of June 2021,  the estimated value of deferred maintenance for 
Lacombe Lodge is $3,328,125, all of which has been assessed as critical need. This includes HVAC 
systems, boilers, windows and building envelope. (Appendix D of Business Plan submission).  
 
 
 
 

https://www.lacombefoundation.ca/lodge-replacement-project


   
 
 
 

4. Units created (Feasibility Study – Part 2 Section 7.5 phasing diagram ); 
Phase one – 54 independent living apartments (40 SSC, 14 affordable). This would net an 
increase of 14 units.  
Phase 2 - Demolition of the current 40-unit apartment  building and one wing of 10 lodge rooms. 
Phase 3 –Construction of 87 lodge spaces.  
Phase 4 – Demolition of old lodge. 
Phase 5 – Construction of 47 units of supportive living (this could be lodge units or other model, 
dependent on community need).  
After completion of all 5 phases, this would result in an increase of 14 independent living 
apartments and 37 supportive living units for the community.  
One of the strengths of the current plan is that residents would not be displaced during 
construction and can transition from the existing space to new space.  
 

5. Location is at the existing lodge site.  Site concept and design are located under  Feasibility Study 
– part 2. Please refer to section 7.  
 

6. Construction timeline – at the time of the 2019 study, all phases were predicted to be able to be 
completed over 60 months (section 9.2).  
 

7. Current state: 
This project requires a coordinated effort with the Ministry as it involves assets owned by the 
Alberta Social Housing Corporation. In the most recent discussions, the project does not appear 
to be in the current queue. While we have been investigating grant opportunities, there seems 
to be a gap with the eligibility of lodge replacement in the current grant offerings, and ability to 
apply for assets not owned by Lacombe Foundation.  

 

Should you have any additional questions, please feel free to ask.  
 

Sincerely,  

 

Carla Beck 
CEO, The Bethany Group 
CAO, Lacombe Foundation 

 



 

 

Greg Rathjen 

REPORT FOR March 2023 

 

• Mar 1 online meeting with Honourable Minister of Municipalities Affairs Rebecca Shultz  
- Discussed Multiple Funding and coming proposed changes as provisions for replacement of 

MSI. Direction provincial government is heading.  
online meeting with Honourable MP Blane Calkins 
- Request two recommendations our riding would like for the change of name of the 

restructuring of our new borders for our area taking Red Deer out. 
  
• Mar 7 MPC MEETING   For garage allowance request  
 
• Mar 8 Indigenous Stakeholders Conversation  

-     Medicine Lodge Ski Hill discussions on the ideas for the Medicine Hills Ski Lodge 
-     Input from all who are interested and having stakeholders 
-     Master Plan and Asset Utilization Study at the Red Deer Resort and Casino  

 
• Mar 9  SHECA Town hall meeting at the Sports Hall    

- Society for Red Deer hospital Expansion. Doctors, mayors, residents, media, and political 
representatives 

 
• Mar 14  Regular Council meeting  

- Declare Volunteer week April 16 to 22 
 

• Mar 22 LREMP Meeting Lacombe Memorial Centre 
 

• Mar 24. Meeting with Dale Russell (Realtor) sales strategy subdivision  
 

• Mar 28 Regular council meeting  
- Farmers Market request  
- Wrapping up our 2022 Auditors Report and recommendations  

 
 



 

 

Dale Grimsdale 

REPORT FOR March 2023 

 

• Mar 7  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting – Oversized Garage 
 

• Mar 14  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• Mar 20  Parent School Board Meeting 
- Trustee Update 
- Preliminary Budget Planning (budget update 2023/2024) 
- School Reach Team headed to provincials’ competition. 
- Fashion show slated for May 25th  
- In house aboriginal studies including moccasin making offered in school 
- Chess club is a big hit and contains multiple grads participating. 
- Bentley is looking into programs that will teach secondary languages 
- The 2023/24 calendar was approved 

 
• Mar 24  Meeting with REMAX town realtor 

 
• Mar 28  Regular Council Meeting  

 



 

 

Lenore Eastman 

REPORT FOR March 2023 

 

 
• Mar 7  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting – Oversized Garage 

 
• Mar 14  Regular Council Meeting 

 
• Mar 21  Emergency Management – Exercise Debrief 

 
• Mar 24  Meet with Realtor Subdivision Lots for Sale 

 
• Mar 27  Lacombe Foundation Meeting 

 
• Mar 28  Regular Council Meeting 

 
 

 



 

 

Brenda Valiquette 

REPORT FOR March 2023 

 

• Mar 7  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting – Oversized Garage  
 

• Mar 14  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• Mar 21  Exercise Winter Storm Debrief – Lacombe Memorial Centre 
 

• Mar 24  Meet with Realtor Regarding Subdivision Lots 
 

• Mar 28  Regular Council Meeting 
 



 

 

Pam Hansen 

REPORT FOR March 2023 

 

• Mar 7  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting – Oversize Garage 
 

• Mar 8  Indigenous Conversation – Medicine Lodge Ski Hill Masterplan 
 

• Mar 14  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• Mar 22  Lacombe Regional Fire Services Advisory Committee Meeting 
 

• New Tender Received for Bentley Fire Department 
• Bentley Fire Department had 111 calls (80 in the county and 31 in town, 23 of 

these calls were motor vehicle collisions. 
• Total calls for fire departments were 870 calls and over 7811 staff hours. 
• Transitioning radios over to AFRCS system as the new system will work much 

better for coverage, easier for departments to communicate with each other 
during mutual aid calls and the departments will have their own radio channels 
and won’t have to worry about other companies etc. using their channels 

• New program also being started to work towards fire fighting courses in High 
School 

• Fire Calls increasing between 5-10% per annum across the country. 
 

• Mar 24  Meeting with REMAX Town Realtor 
 

• Mar 28  Regular Council Meeting 

 
 


	Agenda - April 25,  2023 ,Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	April 25,  2023 Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of April 11, 2023 
	Cheque Listing Chq #20230270 to 20230296
	CHEQUE REGISTER - COUNCIL REMUNERATION FOR MARCH
	New Business 1st Quarter Public Works Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18

	New Business Ball Diamond Maintenace Plan
	New Business April 25, 2023 - Update -Tree Planting 52nd Street Corridor Improvement
	Attachment #1 - Map of Tree Planting on 52nd Street - Original Plan
	Attachment #2 - Revised Planting Plan 52nd Street Corridor
	Lacombe 2022 signed Audited Financial Statements
	Lacombe Foundation advocacy messages
	Lacombe Lodge update March 2023
	LF Advocacy 2023

	Greg Rathjen March Council Report
	Dale Grimsdale  March Council Report
	Lenore Eastman March Council Report
	Brenda Valiquette March 2023 Council Report
	Pam Hansen March Council Report

